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Y CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT /A
ERGRESEER

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30 June

(REBER)
BERXA=THLXER
2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —T-N\F
B eE FTHET FAT
(Re-presented)
(&31)
Continuing operations BELEER
Revenue g 4 66,219 49,067
Cost of sales SHE AR (965) (1,446)
Gross profit EH 65,254 47,621
Other income and gains H AU A R Yz 4 9,582 621
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERZ (1,317) (4,398)
Administrative expenses IEAZ (15,116) (12,734)
Other operating expenses Hit &M% - (3,399)
Finance costs BE TSR 6 (26,198) (40,504)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETERANEF, (FE) 7 32,205 (12,793)
Income tax expenses Frs Tt 8 (11,523) (474)
Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing SECE XK 2 ARRRT
operations (E1#8) 20,682 (13,267)
Discontinued operation ERIEKEEK
Profit for the period from discontinued operation B4 |- 484 75 2 7 HAf] i 4 10 11,496 3,612
Profit/(loss) for the period RHUARER, (EHE) 32,178 (9,655)
Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to:  FE{LAHIREF /(&) !
Owners of the Company RARIHEAA
— from continuing operations —RBIREER 10,439 (18,326)
— from discontinued operation —BRIEREER 11,496 3,612
21,935 (14,714)
Non-controlling interests T MR AR R A A
— from continuing operations —FHRISE R 10,243 5,059
32,178 (9,655)
Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/(loss) AATEE AL RR(FE)
attributable to the owners of the ZEBRWE(BEE)
Company 11
Basic and diluted EXREE
— from continuing operations —RBIRE ¥R HK cent 0.19384L | (HK cent 0.417&1l)
— from discontinued operation —BRIEEEER HK cent 0.21 &l HK cent 0.08 %1l
— from continuing and discontinued operations ~ —HEKEEK LD RILELER HK cent 0.40 &4l | (HK cent 0.337&(l)

4 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Interim Report 2019



Y CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME A
BAGE 2 EB AR

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30 June

(REEXK)
BESRA=THLEAER
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-NEF —E-N\F
FER FET
Profit/(loss) for the period REIRER(B5E) 32,178 (9,655)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax H2mEKA » HIBRSIE
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to  B#A BN 7 EZE#2EE -
profit or loss:
Exchange loss on translation of financial statements — HEGINEE I EIREK 2 [E H E1E
of foreign operations (351) (7,690)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of B A B R AR R OE e
subsidiaries (10,327) -
Other comprehensive income for the period, AEFEMEEBA - HRHE
net of tax (10,678) (7,690)
Total comprehensive income for the period AEEEERALLE 21,500 (17,345)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: BEEER AL :
— Owners of the Company SV UNCIE 2N 11,436 (20,794)
— Non-controlling interests - FEE R AR R M 10,064 3,449
21,500 (17,345)
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Y CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION A
AR & M IR &

As at 30 June 2019 R—ZE—NEXA=+H

6

(Unaudited) (Audited)
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(REEZ) (BEZ)
—E-NEF —E—N\F
~NA=1+H +=-—A=+—8H
ih=s FHET FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NRE 12 20,057 6,519
Intangible assets EREE - 154,141
Goodwill EES 1,440 1,440
Investment properties B 13 1,427,109 1,425,000
Deposits and other receivables Re R E b B Y RIE 49,337 57,204
Deferred tax assets EERIAE E - 43,189
1,497,943 1,687,493
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BE18 14 1,961 15,211
Prepayments, deposits and BHIE - BER
other receivables H b e Y 008 254,335 150,791
Loan receivables e E = 71,948 72,098
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABEZ
through profit or loss W EE 22,605 14,407
Cash and bank balances B RIRITET 7,659 276,531
358,508 529,038
Current liabilities REBAE
Bills and other payables and accruals ENEE  EfEMZRER
FE=TFIB 275,731 389,097
Amounts due to non-controlling FEASTIE I AR AR 3R 70 IR
shareholders 118,297 -
Bank borrowings RITIER 15(a) 123,120 157,320
Other borrowings H g 15(b) 114,840 126,877
Finance lease liabilities MEHESRE 63,729 39,584
Convertible bonds AR ESH 36,250 35,258
Tax payables e R I8 - 9,828
731,967 757,964
Net current liabilities RBAEFEE (373,459) (228,926)
Total assets less current liabilities EERERASERE 1,124,484 1,458,567
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Y CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION A
B AR & B IS AR L &

As at 30 June 2019 R—ZE—NEA=+H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(REER) (& HE%)
—E-NF —E—)N\F
~AB=+H +—HA=+—H
B sE THET FHT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amounts due to a non-controlling P& FEPERR AR PR 3R
shareholder - 259,418
Bank borrowings IRITE 15(a) - 77,520
Other borrowings HAbfE 3R 15(b) 53,181 44,649
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEAE 2,392 2,459
Convertible bonds AR E 5 25,727 25,250
Deferred tax liabilities EERIE B E 92,413 120,000
173,713 529,296
Net assets EEFE 950,771 929,271
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to the AARHEE ABEGER
owners of the Company
Share capital %N 16 544,484 544,484
Reserves EA 230,277 218,841
774,761 763,325
Non-controlling interests FEER R RS 176,010 165,946
Total equity MRS 950,771 929,271
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B CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BEZEN=E 35BS

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 B E T —AF A=+ HI/NEA

(Unaudited)
(7254
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
KAARAARGRR
*Convertible
bonds Non-
Share *Share *Capital ~ *Exchange equity *Revaluation *Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
HTARES FER

Bx  :BOER RAGE  CEXBR  BRER  ERRE  CZHER B R L
T T THL T T ThL THL it it TL

At 1 January 2018 NE-/\&-7-A 304970 2363920 177,027 12,068 462,708 33865 (3,151,008) 203,530 167,210 370,740
lsuance of shares upon placing RERE R 60,994 267 - - - - - 8721 - 8121
Share isue expenses RAEARS - (2129) - - - - = (2129) = (2129)
lssuance of shares upon conversionof B AT AR ERRETRA

convertiole bonds 136,748 361,954 - - (434,700) - - 64,002 - 64,002
Transactions with owners REEAZRA 197,742 386,056 - - (434700) - - 149,098 - 149,098
(osfproft forthe period 1R (BR)/ % - - - : : - (g (e 509 (965)
Other comprehensive income, Afh2EKA

net of tax Hksta
Item that may be recassified subsequently Z4T#E7 7522 B ¢

to profit or loss:
- Exchange loss on translation o financial - & B EHEHRH 2 EY

statementsof foreign operatons 4 - - - (6,080) = = = 6080 (16100 (760)
Total comprehensive income AEmRENALE

for the period - - - (6,080) - - (14.714) (20,794) 3449 (17,345)
At 30 June 2018 H=E-NERA=1A 50712 2,749,976 177,007 5988 28,008 33805 (3165742 331,834 170,659 502,493
At 1 January 2019 H-2-75-A-A 544,484 2,820,152 1m0 (10,470 416,628 3805 (3,218,361) 763,325 165,946 929211
Profit for the peiod oyl - - - - - - 2193 2195 10243 3178
Other comprehensive income, Afh2EKA

net of tax; st
Item that may be recssifed subsequently Z4AEEF 7 EZERZEE ¢

to profit r loss:
- Bxchange loss on translaton of fnancial ~2E 8% £EI B 2B

statements of foreign operations 3 - - - (1) - - - (1) (179) (351)
-Release of exchange reserveupon - HERBAFREREY 2

dlisposal of subsiaries (note 10) (B 10) - - - (10.327) - - - (10.327) - (10,327)
Total comprehensive income AEERENALE

for the period - - - (10,499) - - 21,935 11,436 10,064 21,500
At 30 June 2019 RZE-AERAZTR 544,484 2,820,152 1m0 (20,969) 416,628 33865 (3,196,426) 774,161 176,010 950,111
* The total of these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * P (R AR TH 4R %8 B IR 4R A 85 230,277,000 %5

HK$230,277,000 (30 June 2018: deficits of HK$170,878,000). T(ZE—NFEXA=TA : &4 170,878,000 %
JT) °
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BRAGERERER

I CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA

(Unaudited)

Six months ended 30 June

(REEXK)
BEAA=THLKER

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EB-NEF —E-N\F

FER THT

Net cash used in operating activities LESEEFTA R & %58 (19,037) (83,193)
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEE (TR / EEZRERE

investing activities (2,393) 39,099
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE (A EEZH& 58

financing activities (247,383) 81,278

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BeRBEEEBEA 2 (RD) 1EINEE

equivalents (268,813) 37,184

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—R—BzR&RkREEMEIEEB 276,531 5,699

Effect on foreign exchange rate changes [EREH) s E (59) (85)

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June RAA=ZTHZzZBR&REEEMEER 7,659 42,798

RRERREERARAT / — T AFFHRE 9



I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R B EE

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

10

GENERAL INFORMATION

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and
domiciled in the Cayman lIslands. Its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is Units
4307-08, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the six months ended 30 June 2019 (the “Period”), the
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) include:

- oil and liquefied chemical terminal representing the
business of leasing of oil and liquefied chemical terminal,
together with its storage and logistics facilities (the “Port
and Storage Facilities”);

- insurance brokerage service representing the business of
providing insurance brokerage service; and

- oil production representing the business of oil production
(discontinued on 28 June 2019 in connection with the
disposal of subsidiaries (note 10)).

These unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 34 Interim Financial
Reporting issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The comparative condensed consolidated income statement and
their corresponding notes have been re-presented in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS") 5
“Non-current Assets Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations”
as if operations discontinued during the Period had been
discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.

These unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is also the functional currency of the Company and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$'000") unless otherwise
stated.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Interim Report 2019
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W NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A

B RS SRR Y

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

These unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the annual
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “2018 FS”). Except as described
below, the accounting policies and methods of computation
used in the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements are the same as those followed in the preparation of
the 2018 FS.

In the Period, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new or amended HKFRSs which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, HKASs and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to and
effective for the Group’s financial statements for the accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Annual
Impoverments to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to:
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements;
HKAS 12, Income Taxes;
and HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

2.

RAFAIRNEET 2ERBY
%3 & 2 R

ZERBEZHAGE TR BRI EE
ARABE_Z-N\F+-_A=1+—RH1
FEZFEFRABBHRR([ T N\FH
B]K]) — BT o (R T X&) - R
REZEASS TR BRREAZ &5
BEREAETEZRARE T \FHHR
RATERMEMER -

RABE  AEEERERATHESS
sHER A& B 2 FR] RIGERT BB R
SEA(ZAEREREER ZERFEH
BmEER - BEGTEMRRE)  BE
BENAEER - NF—A— B
BV & T HARE 2 P TS SRR AR

BAEPEREER e
FE 1658

R (BREMBERE  AEHEENTHE
BEZE®)- TE

RFEE 2357

B MM 2R ERAmMEZEA
5 9 SRBRT A B
FREY B E %L AT ERERTA
—T-hFZHF BRPBREE
Bk S e 5] A FE115% £ A
iz FEBGE 2 BAEER

AR FE125% P
5% hEES®

At % Bl 323 5%
fEERA

RRERREERARAT/ — T LR HRSE
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W NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A

12

B R S

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NFNA=+HIENEA

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16 introduced a single, on-balance sheet
accounting model for lessees. As a result, the Group, as
a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing
its rights to use the underlying assets and lease liabilities
representing its obligation to make lease payments. Lessor
accounting remains similar to previous accounting policies.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach, under which the cumulative
effect of initial application is recognised in retained
earnings at 1 January 2019. Accordingly, the comparative
information presented for 2018 has not been restated,
i.e. it is presented, as previously reported, under HKAS 17
and related interpretations. The details of the changes in
accounting policies are disclosed below.

Definition of a lease

Previously, the Group determined at contract inception
whether an arrangement was or contained a lease under
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease (“HK(IFRIC) 4”). The Group now assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
new definition of a lease. Under HKFRS 16, a contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group elected to apply
the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of
which transactions are leases. It applied HKFRS 16 only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.
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W NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A

B RS SRR Y

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z— N FNA=1+HIE~EA

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2.
(Continued)

(c) As alessee (c)

As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as
operating or finance leases based on its assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership. Under HKFRS 16, the Group
recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most
leases. i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet.

However, the Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for some short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less).
The Group recognises the lease payments associated with
these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “Property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item as it presents
underlying assets of the same nature that it owns. The
carrying amounts of right-of-use assets from continuing
operations are as below.

RAFAIRNEET 2B RBY
&%

2R ()

EREEA

EREBAA @ REFHHERTHE
FiT 78 R K BTG R A9 [E 3R K 265
E - AEELEKHEES EAK
LR ERE - RIEEBMERE
ZRIE 165  AEBRABHAE
(BIREEBBR2HEE) BREA
EEERHEARE -

AW ARBECEEIE TEY
HE (BNEEIR 1 2B Ak AT ) i i
REMEEEREEAR - A&H
REEHMREREERRILEHE
HE 2 HEFIRER R -

AAREBE 25 PR —1EE 28R
BE RER—-HBRB M BE

REIPETNEREEE - 8
REXBHEREEERTED
To

Right-of-use assets
HK$'000

EREEE
TAT

Balance at 1 January 2019
Balance at 30 June 2019

The Group presents lease liabilities in “Other
borrowings” in the condensed consolidated statement of
financial position.

ERBERREZRERAT / —F—

—NE—A— BNk
—NEAA=THDE

17,050
13,914

AREBERBRAZEWBIRRR [ E
il i 5K EPE@H:E,%\E\L\

NEF /S
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W NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A
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B R S

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NFNA=+HIENEA

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

(c)

As a lessee (Continued)

(i)

Significant accounting policies

The Group recognises right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.
When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is presented in investment
property. Such right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently measured
at fair value, in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies.

The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as
the discount rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased
by the interest cost on the lease liability and
decreased by lease payment made. It is re-
measured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, a change in the estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or as appropriate, changes in the
assessment of whether a purchase or extension
option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a
termination option is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.
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W NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z— N FNA=1+HIE~EA

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

As a lessee (Continued)

(i)

Transition

Previously, the Group classified property leases
as operating leases under HKAS 17. The leases
typically run for a period of 1 to 3 years.

At transition, for leases classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, lease liabilities were
measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted at the Group's
incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019.
Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments, if any.

The Group used the following practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.

- Use of a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

- Applied the exemption not to recognise
right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases
with less than 12 months of lease term;
and

- Excluded initial direct costs from
measuring the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application.

As a lessor

The Group leases out its investment property and it has
classified these leases as operating leases. The accounting
policies applicable to the Group as a lessor are not
different from those under HKAS 17. However, when
the Group is an intermediate lessor the sub-leases are
classified with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying
asset. Therefore, the Group is not required to make any
adjustments on transition to HKFRS 16 for leases in which
it acts as a lessor.
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B NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A
5 R B EE

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2. BHAHITREET2E B

(Continued) BHEXER (&)
(e) Impact on financial statements (e) HEHKHRRNEE
(i) Impacts on transition (i) HiBER T E
On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group recognised R[] & 78 B 7 i o5 2E Al 38
additional right-of-use assets and additional 1658 BE R - AEEE#®
lease liabilities. The impact on transition from REBINA (5 FA M & B R EB AN
the Group’s continuing operations is summarised WHEEE - BEHAREE
below. RHBECEEB R 2
T -
1 January 2019
HK$'000
—E-NEF
—HA—H
FHAT
Right-of-use assets presented in “Property, (% WEIEE] F25)2
plant and equipment” EREEE 17,050
Lease liabilities presented in “Other borrowings” [ Efth gz | A 23| 2 FHEE & 17,050
When measuring lease liabilities for leases that BIE "*EF%”«%ﬁ&EﬂE
were classified as operating leases, the Group p‘l'ifﬁfi\i% B - AREER
discounted lease payments using its incremental == *ﬂi*ﬂ*ﬂﬁﬁﬁi
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. The weighted- g BN EARAERNRK -
average rate applied is approximately 6%. FfT & FR &) INAE A9 R R4 5
6% °
HK$'000
FAT
Operating lease commitment at 31 December —Z—\F+-A=+—HKKE
2018 as disclosed in the 2018 FS a“ﬁ SARERBERAEED
—E-)\FHBHRE 20,347
Discounted using the incremental borrowing —ET-hF—A—HEMAES
rate at 1 January 2019 1ﬁ‘§ﬂtﬁﬁiﬁ 18,795
Recognition exemption for leases with less than FiEER LA S 1218 A
12 months of lease term at transition Tﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&m%ﬁﬁ& (472)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBA (1,273)
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 R =-Z—HE—F — AR
WHERE 17,050

16 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Interim Report 2019



W NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A

B RS SRR Y

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

(e) Impact on financial statements (Continued)

(if)

Impacts for the Period

As a result of initially applying HKFRS 16, in
relation to the leases that were previously
classified as operating leases, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$14,103,000 and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$14,030,000 respectively as at
30 June 2019 from continuing operations.

Also, in relation to those leases under HKFRS
16, the Group has recognised depreciation
and interest costs, instead of operating
lease expense. During the Period, the Group
recognised depreciation charges of approximately
HK$3,152,000 and interest costs of approximately
HK$435,000 from these leases from continuing
operations.

Save as disclosed in the foregoing paragraphs about
for HKFRS 16 in notes 2(a) to (e), the adoption of the
above new or amended HKFRSs has no impact on these
condensed consolidated interim financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted any new or amended
HKFRSs which have been issued but are not yet effective
in these condensed consolidated interim financial

statements.
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BITREREEAERBEN A
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ =%

3.

—NERA=THILREAR

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Going concern basis

The condensed consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis which
notwithstanding that (i) as at 30 June 2019, the Group
had net current liabilities of HK$373,459,000 (31
December 2018: HK$228,926,000); and (ii) as at 30
June 2019, included in current liabilities were the total
outstanding construction costs of HK$182,523,000 (31
December 2018: HK$344,955,000), that are repayable
within one year after the reporting date, which are
recognised under other payables (31 December 2018:
HK$307,223,000 and HK$37,732,000 were recognised
under other payables and other borrowings respectively)
and capital commitments for construction costs were
HK$7,924,000 (31 December 2018: HK$2,452,000).
These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubts about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, that it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharges its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The directors of the Company (the”Directors”)
have prepared the condensed consolidated financial
statements based on a going concern on the assumptions
and measures that:

(i) On 28 February 2019, the Group has successfully
obtained a new long-term credit facility from
a financial institution in the PRC amounted to
RMB 150,000,000 (approximately HK$171,000,000)
to repay the outstanding construction costs and
bank and other borrowings that are required to
repay within one year and repayable in February
2022. On 8 March 2019, the Group has further
obtained another new long-term credit facility
from another financial institution in the PRC
amounted to RMB300,000,000 (approximately
HK$342,000,000), with a credit period of 36
months;
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W NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A

B RS R R Y

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFA=1+HIE~EA

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a)

Going concern basis (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

In light of the above new credit facilities, the
Group will be able to repay the outstanding
construction costs in the coming twelve months
after the Period;

The Directors are of the view that the Oil and
Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment since fully
operated in May 2018, is able to contribute and
generate a significant and consistent operating
cash inflow to the Group in the coming twelve
months after the Period which mainly derived
from its rental income receipt amounting to
RMB125,000,000 before value-added tax
(approximately HK$142,500,000) as stipulated in
the lease agreement;

The Directors are of the view that the loan
receivables amounted to HK$71,948,000 will
be recovered without default in the coming
twelve months after the Period under the loan
agreements and the management assessment of
its recoverability; and

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company paid an amount of RMB100,000,000
(approximately HK$114,000,000) as refundable
deposits under the terms of memorandum of
understanding, which entered between the
Company and the potential vendors, pursuant to
which the Company proposed to invest in not less
than 45% issued shares in a target company. The
Directors are of the view that the investment is
still under preliminary negotiation and uncertain
of the completion of the transaction with the
potential vendors, therefore, the balance will be
recovered in the coming twelve months.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a)

Going concern basis (Continued)

After taking into account the above assumptions and
measures, the Directors consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within twelve months from 30 June 2019 and believe
that the Group will continue as a going concern and
consequently have prepared the condensed consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
in the condensed consolidated financial statements
to reduce the values of the assets to their estimated
realisable values, to provide for any further liabilities
which may arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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W NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI")
and deconsolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

Ms Leung Lai Ching (“Ms Leung”)’s legal status as
director and legal representative in QHFSMI and
IMFSMI remained unchanged in the absence of her
cooperation

Ms Leung was a director and legal representative of
both QHFSMI and IMFSMI. In September 2009, the
sole shareholder of QHFSMI and IMFSMI (i.e. a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) resolved to remove
Ms Leung’s capacity as director and legal representative
of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI with immediate effect.
However, the respective members of the board of
directors and legal representative of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI were not officially changed up to the date
of authorisation for issue of the Group’s financial
statements as Ms Leung, being the legal representative,
was not cooperative and failed to provide the requested
documents and corporate seals.

Transfer of exploration licence without the
Company’s knowledge, consent or approval

The Group acquired QHFSMI from Ms Leung in 2007.
QHFSMI was the holder of an exploration licence, which
conferred QHFSMI the rights to conduct exploration
work for the mineral resources in the titanium mine at
Xiao Hong Shan in Inner Mongolia, the PRC. In 2010,
the board (the “Board”) of Directors discovered that the
exploration licence held by QHFSMI was transferred to a
company known as A&/ NALILRAREZXBRAF (in
English, for identification purpose only, Inner Mongolia
Xiao Hong Shan Yuen Xian Mining Industry Company
Limited) (“Yuen Xian Company”) at a consideration
of RMB8,000,000 (the “Change of Exploration Right
Agreement”) without the Company’s knowledge,
consent or approval. Ms Leung is one of the directors and
the legal representative of Yuen Xian Company. Without
the exploration licence, QHFSMI no longer had the rights
to, among other things, carry out exploration of the
mineral resources of the titanium mine, access to the
titanium mine and neighbouring areas and has no priority
in obtaining the mining rights of the titanium mine.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Loss of controls over assets of QHFSMI
and IMFSMI and de-consolidating
QHFSMI and IMFSMI (Continued)

Final decision on the Change of Exploration Right
Agreement

As soon as the Group had discovered the loss of
QHFSMI’s exploration licence, the Group commenced
the legal proceedings against Ms Leung for getting back
the exploration licence. In March 2016, the Company
received the final decision letter from the Qinghai
Procuratorate that the Change of Exploration Right
Agreement was invalid. As Yuen Xian Company had
already obtained the mining licence on the titanium mine
at Xiao Hong Shan in Inner Mongolia, the PRC, the Group
is now seeking for the legal advices to resolve this matter.

De-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

Given that (i) the discovery of the loss of significant assets
of QHFSMI; (ii) Ms Leung’s legal status as director and
legal representative in QHFSMI and IMFSMI remained
unchanged; and (iii) the Group was unable to obtain
the financial information of QHFSMI and IMFSMI, the
Directors considered that the Group had no power over
QHFSMI and IMFSMI, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from QHFSMI and IMFSMI and the ability to use
its power to affect those variable returns. The Group
appointed the PRC lawyers to handle the matters in
regaining its controlling power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI.
In the opinion of the Directors, the aforesaid legal
proceedings have no material impact on the financial
position and operations of the Group as the Group is
still in the process of regaining the controlling power
over QHFSMI and IMFSMI which had already been de-
consolidated since 2010.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Interim Report 2019

3.

RBEYE @)

(b)

KXEHEBRERAES
REEEZEFERTE
BEBARBRRATHHR
SEANR @)

HIRERERE 7B RAH R

AEBEERRETBRRZWRE
JR1Z - BN RZ T IREIERFA
AME BRI « R =T —RF=
H  ARAEETSRERNRR
HIRE - ARRBEREE Hid &
Mo BRNIRAR AR ERSHEASR
H/MI I Z SRR BRIE R IR - AR5
B IES SR E R ARIRZL A

8o

TEREERBERARLHFEFE
Ak

ERHBEREEFTBERRZIEX
BE (INREZLER/BERER
NRERRESREERKRAER
AR - R (i) AREEXR
EREERERELARHFKRNOY B
B BEERRAKREHBTERR
EAROHRRLERS  THEH
BERRRAR G FRIRAE L HK
HEBEREN  TEENITEERE
MAZEZEAZEE - AEBEC
HEEEHFTERRERARERR
ZEGE-ERERERMERE
EERR - LA RFRHAEE
B B TS AR B B Y AT TR EE
2 RESAEEERHFERR
RARHFRRZEGHE—FNEE
T MRERARE T —ZFi
ENBEHEAEAR °



I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M =

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA

4. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 4. WX REMWARKE

FEETBEBERREACERERES
PSRRI RE AEETEY
T 7 Mok T E I A T U 26 0 51 n

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to these
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements.
Revenue from the Group’s principal activities and other income

and gains recognised are as follows: T 8
(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30 June
(REEZ)
BEANA=THLEKRERAR
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-hF —ZT-NF
FHET FHET
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Revenue Wz
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Rental income from investment properties #%&¥% 2 & KA 66,216 49,067
Agency income from insurance brokerage R4 40IRFE 2 RIBULA
service 3 -
66,219 49,067
Discontinued operation BRIEKEEER
Sale of crude oil (note 10(a)) $HE Bm (MIsE 10(a)) 16,436 17,836
Other income and gains H iyl A R Wz
Continuing operations BREKEEL
Interest income EMA
- Bank deposits —RITIFHK 11 54l
— Loan receivables — PR E K 694 -
705 594
Fair value gain on financial assets BRBETENEREENAYF
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") Bz ([ AFEAEB®]) 8,586 =
Rental income from sub-letting of HHEEEEEZ2HES WA
leased assets 246 -
Sundry income FIEWA 45 27
9,582 621
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. T EEHR
The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared AEEEREEHRAEEE 2 EERA
segment information based on the regular internal financial HATEDRERENE B EEH I LR
information reported to management of the Group for their ZEDMBRIV 2 AHHBEER - B E &
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business BEDBERERESEER - AMAEEEEE
components and review of these components’ performance. The EL ARG 2 EB DI - THIRBAEE
business components in the internal reporting to management FTEEMEREERETE  c ASBEREY
of the Group are determined based on the Group’s major AT HREDEE -

product and service lines. The Group has identified the following
reportable segments:

(a) the Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment (a) /EEDD&ASZELTEIDDE%“E“*E - F5750
represents the business of leasing of the Port and Storage E50E R FB TR ERS
Facilities;

(b) Insurance Brokerage Service segment represents the (b) RBRELERBE DI - BRERRE
business of providing Insurance brokerage service; and LR K&

(0) the Qil Production segment represents the business of oil (c) ERDE  BEHER A2
production. This segment was discontinued during the E@ZS,HHFEEJW%%EW & o
Period.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. o¥EER @)
There was no inter-segment sale and transfer during the Period AR ES SRz HEREE(HE-Z
(six months ended 30 June 2018: Nil). —N\FENA=THIENER : £) o
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation
RETERE BRILEEEE
0il and Liquefied nsurance
Chemical Terminal Brokerage Service 0il Production Total
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June ended 30 June ended 30 June
BRRERLIRER REEERS -3 &3t
(RE2H) (RESH) (KEEH) (#25)
HERA=TA HERA=TA HERA=TA HERA=TA
IE~:f8R IE~fBA IE~fBA IE7~f8A

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000
ZE-hE |ZFN\F |ZF-AE |Z5-0E |ZB-RE [ZE0\F |2E3-AE |23)\E
Tén | TEr | TEm | TEr | TEn | TEr | TEn | TEn

Reportable segment revenue: FENRUE -

From external customers RENERE 66,216 49,067 3 - 16,436 17,836 82,655 66,903
Reportable seqment profit{loss) RE2ERT/ (B8 59,993 | 36,087 (410) - 3700 | 62204 | 39787
Interest income HEHA - 593 - - 2 2 2 595

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9% - BERFENE

(excluding right-of-use assets) (MeEfERELE) (444) (410) B) - (189) | (2.457) (636) | (2,867)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BRAELENE () - (186) - (269) - (128) -
Amortisation of intangible assets BYRERE - - - - (2m) (326) Vi) (326)
Reportable segment assets BEAREE 1,503,866 | 1,604,897 1,929 - - | 275735 | 1,505,795 | 1,880,632
Additions to non-current segment assets AERERSIEEE

during the Period 0 3,366 351 - - - 358 3,366 3,869
Reportable segment liabilities RENEEE (787,911) | (1,034,723 (3m3) = - | 23671) | (788,284) | (1,258,3%4)
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I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R B EE

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 B ZE =% —

NERA=THIEREAR

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZDEER @
RARELEN B2 2 B ERHH
RANBRERT2FINEEBEENHH
B2 HEMT -

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the
condensed consolidated financial statements as follows:

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30 June

(REEZR)
BZEARA=THLEREAR
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
FET FBT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Revenue &=
Reportable segment revenue and HED AN
consolidated revenue e W 82,655 66,903
Profit/(loss) before income tax KT BRAIRF, ()
Reportable segment profit & D m 62,204 39,787
Segment profit before income tax BRI ERIER TS AT
from discontinued operation 4855 (2,621) (3,700)
Finance costs B 75 R AR (26,198) (40,504)
Other unallocated income Hith R D ELUA 9,291 1
Other unallocated expenses HEMARDBRAX (10,471) (8,377)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before income 484K 4 2 7 4 BS54 Bl
tax from continuing operations memA, (EE) 32,205 (12,793)
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I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A
o 5 AR EE

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DEER (#®)
(Unaudited) (Audited)
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
(REBER) (gE:%z)
—E-hEF —E-N\F
AA=+H +=ZA=+—H
FEx FHET
(Re-presented)
(251)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets HREDEEE
— From continuing operations —FREEEEB 1,505,795 1,525,196
— From discontinued operation — BRI EEB - 203,633
1,505,795 1,728,829
Property, plant and equipment Y - B KREE 14,450 3,538
Cash and bank balances e NIRTETF 7,427 274,824
Other corporate assets HipEEE 328,779 209,340
Group assets REEEE 1,856,451 2,216,531
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities HBEDEEE
— From continuing operations — BB EET 788,284 978,393
— From discontinued operation —BRIEREER - 195,359
788,284 1,173,752
Convertible bonds Al E S 61,977 60,508
Other corporate liabilities EMEEE 55,419 53,000
Group liabilities AEEBE 905,680 1,287,260
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I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 SRR B EE

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. THEER (#®)

Customers from Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal and Oil KEMmEREETRIBERERDER
Production segments are located in the PRC (domicile) whereas FHMRF R (FEE) - mRBRERELR
customers from Insurance Brokerage Service segment are BOBHNBEFRNRES - REMUBIHIE
UBERE MR IR RER P i RaT
NE R EL o IR 2 5 IER BB B IR
L E - bk RERKEBOIEREE E BRI

located in Hong Kong. Geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the goods are delivered and the
contracts are negotiated and entered into with the customers.

No geographical location of non-current assets is presented as R o
substantial non-current assets are physically based in the PRC.
Revenue from major customers is as follows: REEERF ZM=WT -

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30 June

28

(REEZ)
BEAA=THLAEA
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hF —E-N\F
FET FHIT
Customer A (derived from the Oil and EEACRRER SRR
Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment) B TRiGsED 18 66,216 49,067
Customer B (derived from the BEB(RFERERILLEET)
discontinued operation) 16,436 17,836
82,652 66,903

FINANCE COSTS

6.

Bt 35 AR

(Unaudited)

Six months ended 30 June

(REEEX)
BEARA=THLAEA
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —F—\F
FET FAT
(Re-presented)
(&E31)
Continuing operations BHEKEER
Imputed interest on convertible bonds Al IR &5 2 HEE T B 477 17,253
Interest on bank and other borrowings  $R17 R E ff& 5k 2 Fl 2 15,449 14,425
Finance lease charges BEMRES N 2,692 3,985
Interest on amounts due to FEAST FEHE AR
non-controlling shareholders PR ER I 2 FI B 7,145 4,841
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHNE 435 -
26,198 40,504
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I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A
5 AR EE

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA
7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRFAABBAER(E8)
Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging the BEEBRA SN (BEE)EHBEUTE
following: =
(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30 June
(REEZ)
BEASA=THLAEA
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hF —T-)\F
FET THT
(Re-presented)
(E3%)
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEMREZITE
equipment (excluding right- (TEEFERAEEE)"
of-use assets)" 996 418
Depreciation of right-of-use assets” FREEEZITE" 3,152 =
Direct operating expenses arising EEHESRAZKRENFEEEZ
from investment properties HERER
that generated rental income* 1,317 4,398
Fair value loss on financial assets at BEAFEFAEBRZ
FVTPL* MISEEZ AT EEE* - 3,392
Exchange loss, net HNGE B E RE 353 489
Employee costs, including directors’ EBERAN  BEEZHE
emoluments 6,586 5,816
. Included in “administrative expenses” in the condensed : Bit AR BaE s [TTBAXZ] -
consolidated income statement.
§ Included in “selling and distribution expenses” in the condensed ' BEt ARG AEEERZ [HERDH
consolidated income statement. FZ] e
Included in “other operating expenses” in the condensed . Bt ABERAGEERRZ [HEEH
consolidated income statement. o
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 8.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had
no estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong for both periods.

FreBipx

MR AEENRERMOBEETEEENK
REERZEFTERTOEH - S ERE
ABRETELBYE -

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30 June

(REEZR)
BZEARA=THLEREAR
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-NF “E-N\F
FET FAT
(Re-presented)
(&E7%)
Continuing operations BESEEL
Current tax — PRC & HAFH 1A — th
— Current period — ZN B - -
— PRC withholding tax — b AR 447 474
Deferred tax — PRC RIERIE —
— Current period — RHAfE 11,076 -
Income tax expenses Frig B2 11,523 474

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC enterprise
income tax at the tax rate of 25% (six months ended 30 June
2018: 25%) for the Period.

9. DIVIDENDS 9.

The Board did not recommend any payment of interim dividends
during the Period (six months ended 30 June 2018: Nil).
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W NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A

IR MR

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA

10.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 3 June 2019, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with the independent third party (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to
acquire and the Group has conditionally agreed to sell the entire
issued shares of China International Energy Investments (Hong
Kong) Limited (together with its subsidiaries referred to as the
“Target Group” engaged in the oil production) which hold 100%
equity interest in China Era Energy Power Investment Limited
at a total consideration of HK$52,819,000 (the “Disposal”)
which was paid upon signing of the disposal agreement by way
of two Promissory Notes (collectively, the “Promissory Notes"”).
The Promissory Notes comprised: (a) the first promissory note
with a face value of HK$41,619,000 carrying no interest and
maturing on 31 December 2020 (the “Zero-coupon Promissory
Note"”); and (b) the second promissory note with a face value of
HK$11,200,000 carrying interest of 8% per annum and maturing
on 31 August 2019 (the “8%-coupon Promissory Note").

Prior to the completion of the Disposal, the Group, exclude the
Target Group (collectively the “Remaining Group”) owed the
Target Group an amount of HK$41,619,000 (the “Drawing
from Target Group”). Pursuant to the disposal agreement, it
is a condition that (a) the Group shall apply the Zero-coupon
Promissory Note to settle all the outstanding sum owed to the
Target Group following completion of the Disposal; and (b) the
8%-coupon Promissory Note shall apply as the partial repayment
to a refundable earnest money of HK$29,000,000 (the “Earnest
Money"”) owed to the other interested purchaser (the “Other
Interested Purchaser”) who advanced to the Company pursuant
to the memorandum of understanding dated 31 December
2018 entered between the Company and the Other Interested
Purchaser. Details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 31 December 2018 and 3 June 2019.

The Disposal was completed on 28 June 2019 (the “Disposal
Date”) and there is no outstanding balance between the Disposal
Group and the Remaining Group and the 8%-coupon Promissory
Note has been partially offset with the Earnest Money. The
Disposal constitutes a discontinued operation under HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
as the oil production represented one of the major line of
business of the Group. Sales, results, net assets and cash flows of
the Target Group were as follows:

10.

RIEREXTE

RZZE—NERA=ZE  XEEEBIE
=X (BT DIV ESE W Bt B
BERHRERBRAKRBEEHRHERELE
TEERERRE(FE)ERQE(GER
HifBA RS BREE]  tEaHE
E - ZARFKETEFRERRKEEGRA

Al Z100% A1) =3B 17D - 8K
/452,819,000 L ([HEEHE]) » WE

MNEFETHE B ARG & ZE (578
BIEEEE]D AT - AHEZEBIE
(a)H{E A41,619,000% 7T & A5t 2 I 7
—ECTF+A=+—HEBzE—1H
ERER(TEBALEER]  Rb)EER
11,200,000 7 7T N LA FI R 8% &t B
—E-hENA=T+—BEHBZE DK
HEE([8% ZEAKERE]) -

REEZTHKA AEB(TEEEEE
H ZHEIATEEDXREBEESERE
41,619,000 ([ BEEERRK]) - B
B EHZ - BRIEHKEE (o) HEFET
K& AEBERTEALEESEAR
BEESEEMNEBRBEENRE  &(b)
8% ZEAKEZRERNBEEREHEME
EE WIS AIREFE £ 29,000,000 7
T(HE2]) (EBEEREA([EMEER
BARDIBEBERAAREEMBEERE TR
T NF+_A=1+—BHiUNFRES
BRRARNRIER) - BAFBHNRARR
AR — ) \F+=ZA=+—BHK=Z
—hWENAZBHRAE o

HEFHER _F-AEXNA-+N\R
(THERHBD R LEEBERBRTEE
ZHEBMEREBESS  H8REEALR
BERBESSHOEE WEEEBKE
BB REERE S [FHELE Z IR
BERDRIEREEBITHEZERIER
Z— FHRBEKRENHEER X5 &
EFBENREREHINWT
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I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NFNA=+HIENEA

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 10. CRUEKESER &)

(a) Analysis of the results of the discontinued ERIEREEB 2 EXED

(a)

operation:

o

(Unaudited)

(REEZ)

Period from
1 January 2019 Six months
to the Disposal ended 30 June
Date 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z—N%F BEZZT—)\&F
—A—HEZE NA=THILE
HE BB ~ME A
FHET FH&T
Profit for the period BRI A 455 3,612

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H &S BT B A B A1 (BT Eb)

(note b) 11,041 -
11,496 3,612
Revenue W 16,436 17,836
Cost of sales $HE AN (8,665) (9,131)
Gross profit EF 7,771 8,705
Other income and gains H bl A B U zs 18 2
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (225) (258)
Administrative expenses THHAX (4,657) (4,097)
Other operating expenses Hih & 25 (285) (670)
Finance costs B FE B 2R (165) (148)
Profit before income tax B AT 1S 250 Al s A 2,457 3,534
Income tax (expenses)/credit FrEE () &Kp (2,002) 78
Profit from discontinued operation B4R I E S TS 2 A 455 3,612
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z— N FNA=1+HIE~EA

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries:

W NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A

10. CRIEEEER @)
(b) HEMBLFE :

HK$'000
FHBT

Net assets disposed of: HENEETHE :
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K& 1,980
Intangible assets B AE 153,854
Deferred tax assets REBIHE E 41,178
Trade receivables FEU B 58RI 5,064
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTFRIE « e R H M fE WRIE 1,223
Cash and bank balances Re MR1TER 270
Amount due from the Remaining Group BT AL B EIGRIA 41,619
Other payables and accruals H th & < 501 R FEET FRIR (101,416)
Other borrowings HEMER (43,469)
Tax payables FET R IE (9,796)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEAE (38,403)
52,105
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal H & B AR BR BE H (10,327)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR R 11,041
Total consideration KRBz 52,819

An analysis of the net cash flow arising on disposal of the HEBRIEREXBELE 2R NS FHE

discontinued operation was as follows: A CINE
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration RERE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZHeRREEEER (270)
Net cash outflows arising from the disposal HENBRAREEZRES R EE
of subsidiaries (270)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NFNA=+HIENEA

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 10. ERLREXRE @)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) HEMBRT (&)

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the EREERNEERRNEERAR
Target Group at the Disposal Date are approximately B9 BR [ {8 5 Bl 49 43 245,189,000 7%
HK$245,189,000 and HK$193,084,000 respectively. 7T % 193,084,000/ 7t » tH&E F1A
A gain of approximately HK$11,041,000 arose on the EAEF4I11,041,00078 7T » Bl
Disposal, being the face value of the Promissory Notes HERBEGHIAME(E 52,819,000
of HK$52,819,000 less net asset value disposed of in the LR EPTE & EFEA 41,778,000
amount of approximately HK$41,778,000, being the net BT FER (VEEEEER A
amount of (i) the equity attributable to the owners of the JE {5 % 2= 952,105,000 7t K&
Disposal Group of approximately HK$52,105,000; and (IR ESERE D EL FEL
(i) the release of the exchange reserve upon Disposal of 10,327,000 7T » & BIEWEE
approximately HK$10,327,000. No tax charge or credit EEAHIBERS LKL ©

arose from the Disposal.

For the purpose of presenting the discontinued RERLBEERIECEEB S
operation, certain comparative information on fERRAR G W a2k MAB M sl
condensed consolidated income statement and FLHEREMBEES - BOARBERA
the related notes have been re-presented as if the B AR 375 B Rt B B F 4A
discontinued operation during the Period had been IRp 4% A o

discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.
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I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /A
B R M =

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z— N FNA=1+HIE~EA

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE 1. BRER(FH#E)
The calculations of basic earnings/(loss) per share attributable to RNAREE ARG GREAEF(EE)
the owners of the Company are based on the following data: TR A N EIETE -

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30 June

(REEEZ)
BEARA=THLEREAR
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —T—\F
FET FAT
(Re-presented)
(&71)
Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to  FALAGTEFRREAE R (EE)
the owners of the Company for the i N/NGIEZ 2 = DN Y N
purpose of basic earnings/(loss) per WA (E518)
share
- From continuing operations —REBEREER 10,439 (18,326)
— From discontinued operation —REBRIEEER 11,496 3,612
21,935 (14,714)
Number of shares RHEAE 000 ‘000
F i T A%
Weighted average number of ordinary RAUGTESREREE 2
shares for the purpose of basic AR hnE T 9
earnings/(loss) per share 5,444,845 4,517,706
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the BREARKE (E1B) HREARAR#ES
earnings/(loss) attributable to the owners of the Company and ABAEWRA (B8 ) I 8RR i AE F 15 &
the weighted average number of ordinary shares. FTE o
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, no adjustment BE_ZT—NFRZZE-/N\FA=TH
has been made to the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount LERER - AR AR R 7 IR E 5 5T
presented in respect of a dilution as the impact of the convertible 2 ZERERBA (BB 2EELER
bond outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic BEre  WENEEEI| 2ERERI
earnings/(loss) per share amount presented. A (EB) SEIELFARE -
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I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R B EE

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. % BERRHE
During the Period, the Group acquired property, plant and AEE - REEBWEYE  BEKERER
equipment at cost of approximately HK$1,257,000 (six months A% 51,257,000 (BE=Z—N\F
ended 30 June 2018: HK$638,000) and recognised right-of-use SNA=1+HIEMEA : 638,000/87T) K
assets of approximately HK$17,050,000 as at 1 January 2019 —ET-NF—HA—H CRRAERELE
(note 2(e)(i)). 417,050,000 7% 7T (BT &E 2(e)(i)) ©

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REW=
During the Period, the additions to investment properties at cost ANEAEA - ARG 2 2 A FEIL I
amounted to approximately HK$2,109,000. 2,109,000 A& 7T °
As at 30 June 2019, the entire investment properties (31 R=ZZE—NAF~A=1+RH ' 2BHE
December 2018: HK$1,425,000,000) have been pledged to ME(—_ZE-—NF+=-_A=+—8:
secure banking facilities granted to the Group and finance lease 1,425,000,0008 ) EHIF - LAAEE
liabilities. BT 2 RTRENREEER BIEEMR -

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES 14. BWEZRIE

The Group normally allows trading credit terms 30 days (31
December 2018: 30 days) to its established customers. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For certain customers with
long established relationship and good past repayment history, a
longer credit period may be granted. Trade receivables are non-
interest bearing.

As at 30 June 2019, the entire trade receivables (31 December
2018: HK$11,874,000) have been pledged to secure the finance
lease liabilities.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date,
is as follows:

REB—METFEERLBEREZES AH30
B(=—N\&+=-A=+—H:308)2
Z5EEH - BEARFREEELR - 5
AETEEYRHMEABE RITER
MEEME @ JEREBRERNEESR - &
WE ZRBEI TS ©

R-ZE—-AENA=1+H 2BPEKEZ
SRB(ZE—N\NF+=_A=+—8":
11,874,000/ ) E B UERMERE
afE -

JEWE SERBERIEEZERA S ZRE DTN
T~

(Unaudited) (Audited)

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

(REEZ) (&%)

—E-hF —Z—\F

AA=tH +=RA=+—~”

FHET FAT

1 - 90 days 1290H 1,961 15,211

As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, there were no trade

R-B-AFRNAZTHR=F-N\HF

T-A=+—B YEERKEZREREH
REERCRE AEBELERZZTHEH
AR E A -

receivables that were individually determined to be impaired. The
Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZ=—Z—NFNA=1+HIE~EA

15. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(a) Bank borrowings

15. BITREMMER

(a) SRITERK

(Unaudited) (Audited)
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$000
(REER) (&2=Z)
—E-hEF —E—N\EF
~A=+RH |t—A=+—H
FET T
Current BN &R
Bank loans, secured (notes i and ii) IRITER - AHEH (M Xii) 123,120 157,320
Non-current JEENHR
Bank loans, secured (note i) IRITE - HEE (HED) - 77,520
123,120 234,840

Notes:

(0]

(0]

As at 31 December 2018, the balances of
HK$136,800,000 and HK$77,520,000 are under
current liabilities and non-current liabilities respectively
are denominated in RMB, charged at a fixed interest
rate of 6.5% per annum pledged by entire investment
properties of HK$1,425,000,000 and guaranteed by
independent third parties. These are under the Oil and
Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment. This loan was
early repaid in June 2019 and another new loan of
RMB128,000,000 (approximately HK$145,920,000)
was obtained from the same financial institution
subsequently in July 2019, details of which are set
out in the note 20(b) to these unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2019, the balances of HK$123,120,000
(31 December 2018: HK$20,520,000), also denominated
in RMB, is charged at fixed interest rates ranging from
8.5% to 15% (31 December 2018: 15%) per annum,
guaranteed by independent third parties and repayable
within one year.

All of the bank borrowings do not contain a clause
that provides the lenders with an unconditional right to
demand repayment at any time at its own discretion as at
30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018.

(i) R=ZF—N\FE+=-A=+—8H
136,800,000 7T, } 77,520,000
BILZ R EEH D BIFIRR
BERFETHEBEET N
ARBEE - REEFH X
65%:r B HEHREWE
1,425,000,000 % 7T {E# 38 3¢ M
B E=HER o ZELEHIIRN
TR T RS E S EIE
T - ZERERER=_T—NEF
NAEE WEHEBER=-T—H
FLARRA—SREKBEESS
—% AR % 128,000,000 7T ( 49
145,920,000 T ) B 1 B 3K -
BB B R AR E X ERRAR
& B IERERMIFE 20(0) ©

(ii) R=ZZE—hAhE~NA=+H"
#62123,120,0008 (=
E-NE+=-_A=+—8:
20,520,000 7T ) 78 LA A R %
FHE - REEFENERHS5% E
15% 2B (ZZE—\F+=A
=+—H : 15%)&r8 * WHE
SME=FERITR —FREE -

RZE—NAhEAA=Z+HE=-FE

—N\EFE+=—A=+—H " BRI

ERAL TN EERT B EGEER

BERF B 1B B SREER 2 IR ©
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NFNA=+HIENEA

15. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 15. SBITREMER @)

(b) Other borrowings (b) HER
(Unaudited) (Audited)
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
(REER) (FE%)
—e-nE | —E\F
ANB=+R8 |t=ZA=+—H
FEn FHT

Current ENER

Other borrowings, unsecured HihEFR o EiKHE 7,415 43,821

Other borrowings, secured (note i) HAbfER - BHEA (M) 83,652 83,056

Lease liabilities HEBE 5,973 =

Promissory note (note ii) A IR (BT i) 17,800 -

114,840 126,877

Non-current JERNHA

Other borrowings, unsecured Hib 5 - mEHR 45,051 44,649

Lease liabilities HEAE 8,130 =

53,181 44,649

Notes: PiRE -

(i) This loan was pledged by the entire paid up capital of (i) ZEFXBHLRIERBHEERA
Shandong Shundong Port Services Company Limited AI(TERBR | AEE#HAR
("Shundong Port”), which is a 51% owned subsidiary of 51% R HEZ B A |l ) & 208
the Group. BRAEA -

(ii) The 8%-coupon Promissory Note has been partially (ii) REEBH F58%ENE
offset with Earnest Money (note 10) on the Disposal % (KizE10) E B E S HEH -
Date, the remaining balance due to the Other Interested ENEMEEFFRENGE
Purchaser of HK$17,800,000 have been settled by way 17,800,000 L B B B 21T H
of issuance of a promissory note with a face value of B4 17,800,000 7 7T 4 4 i, 52
HK$17,800,000, carrying interest of 8% per annum and BURENERS% B RN
maturing on 31 August 2019. —NWENA=+—REH) %
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15. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 15. SBITREMER @)

(b) Other borrowings (Continued) (b) HMER#)
As at 30 June 2019, total current and non-current other R=ZZE—NFA=+H B
borrowings were scheduled to repay as follows: JEENHRE M ERTECEEIT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
HK$’'000 HK$'000
(REBEZR) (EE=Z)
—ZE-NF —=—N\F
NA=+H |[t=ZA=+—H
FHERT FET
Due within one year or on demand N—FERNB S EK(EERE 114,840 126,877
Due in the second to fifth years, RE-_ZFRFTH
inclusive (BEEEMSF) 53,181 44,649
168,021 171,526
All of the other borrowings carried interest between 8% AT B ERZ FRIERR8% £ 18%
to 18% per annum (31 December 2018: interest-free or ZE(ZE—N\F+ZA=+—8:
interest bearing at 5% to 9.6% per annum) and obtained R EHEFEMERS%E9.6%) I
from independent third parties. MBI E=FHEE -
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16. SHARE CAPITAL 16. B
As at 30 June 2019 As at 31 December 2018
R-ZZE-NFEXA=1A RZE-N\F+=A=1+—H
Number of Number of
shares shares
'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
BHEE Bm &R
Tt TERT T THT
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREE0. BT ERK
At beginning of the period/year TAHR/ ) 15,000,000 1,500,000 5,000,000 500,000
Increased in authorised capital (note i) 218 A RLAN (FizE) - - 10,000,000 1,000,000
At end of the period/year RE/FX 15,000,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEI BTz EBR
At beginning of the period/year RE/EA] 5,444,845 544,484 3,049,705 304,970
Issuance of shares upon share placing  RIRH B SRZETRH
(note ii) (FizEii) - - 609,940 60,994
Issuance of shares upon conversion RER TR E S TR
of convertible bonds (note iii) (BsEiii) - - 1,785,200 178,520
At end of the period/year RE/EXR 5,444,845 544,484 5,444,845 544,484
Notes: FieE
(i) By an ordinary resolution dated 11 June 2018, the (i) BRIEEBHRE-_ZTE—NFE~A+—H

authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$500,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each to HK$1,500,000,000 divided into 15,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each by the creation of an additional
of 10,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ranking
pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the
Company.

(i) On 14 February 2018, the Company completed a share placing
for an aggregate for 609,940,000 shares at a placing price of
HK$0.143 per share to independent investors. Net proceeds
(after deducting all applicable costs) from the placement were
approximately HK$85,096,000. Details of the placement are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 22 January 2018
and 14 February 2018.
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16. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 16. BA(#)
Notes: (Continued) Mgt : (88)
(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2018, 785,200,000 shares (iii) RZE—NF+ZA=+—HILFEA "
have been converted under the convertible bonds issued in R-ZE—FF+ - AT R ES
December 2010 and 999,999,996 shares have been converted B B4 4 785,200,000 D » R=F
under the convertible bonds issued in September 2015. —AFNAFTHAIRRESEDERR

999,999,996 A& AR {7 -

17. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 17. RERNEAE
(a) As lessor (a) 1EARHBAA
At 30 June 2019, the Group had total future minimum R-_ZE—NFAA=+H '  £5H
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases T T B EF B A & i 2 S BT AR A
with its tenant falling due as follows: Az RRx DM E AT
T~

(Unaudited) (Audited)
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
(REERZ) (&= =%)
—E-hEF “E-N\F
ANA=+H +—HA=+—H
FET FHT
Within one year —FE R 128,378 128,378
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F-FZ=FRF (AEERERSE) 360,174 427,933
488,522 556,311
The Group leases its investment properties under an REERBELSESHAOLHEEER
operating lease arrangement, with leases negotiated for By HPERART - £&M

terms of five years. The operating lease do not include DB REBS -

contingent rentals.
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17. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 17.
(b) As lessee (b)

KRN RE ®)

ERAEA

R-F-—AFXA=+E  ~&£H
T34 BRI E % 2 71 7 1 34
A2 R IRERER KA T -

At 30 June 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
falling due as follows:

(Unaudited) (Audited)

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

(REEZ) (&&= =%)

—E-NF —E-)\F

ANA=1+H +=RA=+—~”

FERT FHIT

Within one year —FA 661 7,966
In the second to fifth years, inclusive £ _FZFAF (DEEEME) - 12,381
661 20,347

AEERBELEHOCAERRE
BEFERIFE 17RO R) HAET
MELH - BFRRE - AKED
RARETNERENIGERES
BgHmELENFE 165  RFULTT
e AEER-_Z-NAF—HA—H
ABRRUGEHRUEREZEHER
MHHERE(RNE2)  -B=F
—NWE—A—Bi BREEMK
THARBR RO BT 5 2 89 I8 3R 70 £ B B
BRAKRANERREERE - %5
HETBEAAES

18. EXK Hibh&iE

The Group leases certain leasehold land and buildings and
equipment which were previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS
16 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to these
leases (see note 2). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future
lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the
condensed statement of financial position in accordance
with the policies set out in note 2. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

18. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

42

(Unaudited) (Audited)
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
(REBERZ) (TFEZ)
—E-hF —E-N\F
~AB=+H +=ZA=+—H
FHERT TABT
Capital commitments for construction A MR T RS EEEE
cost of oil and liquefied chemical terminal B\ 72N 7 & 2N & 7,924 2,452
Other commitments in respect of MEIRE RSB 2 H A AE
administrative fees and training fees - 42,973
7,924 45,425
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19.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the balances and transactions with related parties
disclosed elsewhere in these unaudited condensed consolidated
interim financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties during the Period:

(i) Compensation of key management
personnel

Included in employee costs are key management
personnel compensation (including directors’
emoluments) and comprises the following categories:

19.

BEEALRS

MR AR AR =X B4R S P HA B 1 ¥k Ho A B
DFTRBREAEAN LT Z &R RZFH - K
SERAHARANEBEEATETZRF M
T~

(i) ETEEENEZFH
TEEBABZEMN(BEERMH
)N ABIRA - BFEATHE
Bl :

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30 June

(ii)

(REER)
HZANA=tHLAKEA
2019 2018
HK$’'000 HK$'000
o e G
FHET FHTT
Short-term employee benefits 72 ERE B fE A 1,380 1,239
Contribution to retirement RNEHET B2 5K
benefit scheme 9 9
1,389 1,248
Outstanding balances with a related party (i) FEEEHLEE

As at 30 June 2019, the amount due to a director
included in the Group’s current liabilities is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment
amounted to HK$2,000,000 (30 June 2018: nil).

R-T—AFEA=FH " stAR
EERHEBNEN—ZERHKE
2,000,000/8 70 © AEEE - 5

EREEEEFRA(—T—
A=1+H &) -

NER
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZ=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

20. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

(a)

Subsequent to the Period, Shundong Port, Mid-Ocean
Hong Kong Investment Limited (“Mid-Ocean”) who is the
parent company of Shundong Port, the non-controlling
shareholder of the Group (the “JV partner”) and an
investor (the “Investor”) entered into the capital increase
agreement (the “Capital Increase Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Investor agreed to subscribe for the new
equity of 8.5% of the enlarged registered and paid up
capital of Shundong Port (the “Capital Increase”) for the
consideration of RMB70 million (approximately HK$79.8
million) (the “Consideration”). The Consideration will
be settled through the capitalisation of the existing loan
for the principal amount of RMB70 million loan from
the Investor to Shundong Port (the “Pre-existing Loan”).
Upon completion of the Capital Increase, the Group’s
equity holding in Shundong Port will decrease from 51%
to 46.67% and the Pre-existing Loan will be deemed as
fully settled.

Simultaneously with the signing of the Capital Increase
Agreement, Mid-Ocean has entered into a concert party
agreement (the “Concert Party Agreement”) with the
JV Partner, pursuant to which the JV Partner irrevocably
undertakes to vote in accordance with Mid-Ocean’s
decisions at shareholders’ meetings of Shundong Port.
Through the Concert Party Agreement, the Group will
continue to have control over Shundong Port after the
Capital Increase. It is expected that Shundong Port shall
remain as a subsidiary of the Company and its results
shall continue to be consolidated in the Group's financial
statements. Details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 July 2019. As at the date of this
report, the Capital Increase is yet to be completed.

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Group has
successfully obtained a credit facility of RMB128,000,000
(approximately HK$145,920,000) from a financial
institution (note 15(a)). This loan is charged at fixed
interest rate of 5.3% per annum and repayable in
February 2022, which is pledged by the entire investment
properties and guaranteed by a related party. This loan
was drawn down by the Group in July 2019.
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Y VIANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS A
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OPERATING RESULTS

The Group is principally engaged in the leasing of oil and liquefied
chemical terminal, insurance brokerage service and the oil production
(which was disposed on 28 June 2019).

(i) Revenue

For the Period, the Group’s record revenue from continuing
operations was approximately HK$66 million, representing
an increase of approximately HK$17 million or approximately
35% as compared to the corresponding period in 2018 of
approximately HK$49 million. The Group's revenue is mainly
contributed from the rental income of the oil and liquefied
chemical terminal.

(ii) Gross profit

For the Period, the Group's record gross profit from continuing
operations was approximately HK$65 million, representing an
improvement of approximately HK$17 million or approximately
35% as compared to the corresponding period in 2018 of
approximately HK$48 million, which is due primarily to the full
operation of the Group’s oil and liquefied chemical terminal
in May 2018. The Board believes that the stable rental income
generated from the leasing of oil and liquefied chemical
terminal enables the Group to maintain the gross profit
position.

(iii) Profit attributable to the owners of the
Company

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
Period was approximately HK$22 million (six months ended
30 June 2018: loss of HK$15 million), such turnaround from
loss to profit is mainly attributable to the improvement in the
Group's business activities, including (1) an increase in the
revenue and the gross profit from oil and liquefied chemical
terminal segment due to the Port and Storage Facilities were
fully operated from May 2018 onwards; and (2) an increase in
the profit from the oil production segment from approximately
HK$4 million for the six months ended 30 June 2018 to
approximately HK$11 million for the Period which includes a
non-recurrence disposal gain of the oil production business.

ReXE

AEETEREREhRLRELL T RIGAE -
RBELCIRBEARER(ERZZE—NLEFRA
—+NABEE) -

(i) W=

AR - NEBFBELEEBERSER
4766,000,000%8 ¢ * B = F — )\ F [[F H
#749,000,000 % 73 hN49 17,000,000 &
TLHHAI35% ° AEBEREEERAHM®
MBI MEEEB 2 HSRA

(i) EA

7N & [ A AN B 2 B ) #9 & 65,000,000
BT HEBERZZ— \F RSB EFNL
48,000,000/ 7T + # &%) 17,000,000 %
TLH#35% c EFWRESETEARAEE
ZHREREGCIRGEEE S \Fh
ARfpEEHEE EFHEHEEhR
NREE(E T mis EFEF@’J%E@H&)\
AR EBRFER MR

(iii) XAFEEAEMGER

RAER - ARRHE ARBERENNA
22,000,000 T(EHEZ=F—N\NF A
=+ B 1ENE A : E 1815000000
) EEARADNEIEHANAEEERN
EMEBC REMBAEMNERERELEIR
WEASENBERFETREE =T —\F
FARZEMBEESKREREFNEM :
RQ)ERDENN (RIEERFEBEIE
AREEEHLRERE) BEE-T— N\
FRA=THIEREHAZ 4,000,000 % T
HINZEAEIRE4I 11,000,000 T -
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage
and logistics facilities business

By end of 2015, the Group has injected RMB115 million (approximately
HK$136 million) to Shundong Port to obtain 51% equity interest
in Shundong Port. Shundong Port owns two sea area use rights
covering an aggregate area available for land-forming and reclamation
construction of approximately 31.59 hectares in Dongying Port,
Shandong Province, the PRC and permitting the construction of
reclamation and land-forming for use in sea transportation and port
facilities for a 50-years’ period running from 13 November 2014
to 12 November 2064 and 23 February 2016 to 22 February 2066
respectively. Shundong Port has completed the construction and
commenced leasing of its Port and Storage Facilities during 2017. Full
commercial operation has been achieved in May 2018.

Oil business

On 28 June 2019, the Group discontinued the oil business upon the
completion of disposal of the Target Group. Approximately HK$16
million revenue was generated from this discontinued operation as
compared to approximately HK$18 million in the correspondence
period in 2018.

Changes in estimated quantities of proved crude oil reserves for the
period from 1 January 2019 to the Disposal Date and during the six
months ended 2018 are indicated as follows:

£ E)-

KREFTBIELIRTEE RERYAR
e

HE-ZT—ILFFE AEECRIERBHEIE
ANE# 115,000,000 (%) 136,000,000 %)
LAERAS IEESR A 7551 % AR 4 - BB IS A mIE
2R - RERBEILEEREBATAELS
HERRIEGEREEBEALI1.59AE - WK

SRR R TR - SUEE BRSO R
FefEF - BB A5 - HBIA=T—mET -
At=ARE-FAMF+-A+-ALR=F

—ANEF A+ ZHARE_ZTEARNF_A=-_+=

HiE - RZZT—+F \\E%ﬁﬁ%ﬂnﬁkﬁ &30 7
%MEAED&ﬁTﬂm —\FHARH
AR XL E
AHmER
ATE-NFERNAHNE AEBRERBE

BEEEERRIEEERRER- &EﬂmﬂM
EBEEMKELA16,000,0008 70 0 =
— N\ F R4 A 18,000,000 F T °

RZB-NE-A-BEHLEAHRRBE=T

—N\FIEREABRE - RARAFEE 2 HETE8E
ZEE}|HIT

Crude oil

[

(million metric

tonnes)

(BEANE)

Reserves as at 1 January 2018 RZZE-NEFE-—A—HAZHE
Changes resulted from production PRl A EE T 2 R

Reserves as at 30 June 2018

—hF-A-BzRHE

Reserves as at 1 January 2019

Changes resulted from production AEEMEEE
Reserves as at the Disposal Date REERBRZHE

Note: Based on the Group’s share of participated interests in the oil field

through jointly controlled operations.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$1,856 million (31 December 2018: HK$2,217 million), total
liabilities of approximately HK$906 million (31 December 2018:
HK$1,287 million), indicating a gearing ratio of 0.49 (31 December
2018: 0.58) on the basis of total liabilities over total assets. The current
ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2019 was 0.49 (31 December 2018:
0.70) on basis of current assets over current liabilities.

Loan receivables amounted to approximately HK$72 million (31
December 2018: approximately HK$72 million) represented loans
to independent third parties which bear fixed interest rate ranging
from 4% to 10% annually. Deposits amounted to approximately
RMB100 million (approximately HK$114 million) (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$114 million), which is included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, relating to the deposit paid for the
proposed investment in a fintech project in the PRC. Details of which
can be referred to the announcement of the Company dated 30
October 2018.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had bank and other borrowings of
approximately HK$123 million and HK$168 million respectively (31
December 2018: HK$235 million and HK$172 million respectively).
The aggregate bank deposits and cash in hand of the Group were
approximately HK$8 million (31 December 2018: HK$277 million).

5t %5 1B B
RBES UBERRRARSE

RZZE—NFRA=Z1+AH AEEBZEEHRE
%9 /1,856,000,0008 L ( —_E—\F+= A
=+—H:2,217,000,0008 ) r BEEELD
/906,000,000 T (—E—NE+-A=+—
H :1,287,000,00087L) ' IEAEBERIE
ERBETE EX8ELXER049(ZFE—N
F+=-—A=+—H:0.58)° EA:%—jmi/‘*\ﬂ
—tH ERBEERUADAEGTE &K%
BZARBEEEB0AI(ZE—N\F+_A=+—
H:0.70) °

fE U E K 4972,000,0008 L( T — \F+ =
B=+—8": 472,000,000 7T ) 1 @A B
VYEZITRENER REEFMNE4%E
10% 5T B o &€ 4 A R % 100,000,000 7T (4
114,000,000 L) (ZE—NF+ZA="+—
H : 49114,000,000%870) * ZiLZ&t ABRBE
FRE—ACATEOHSHBIEER XMEEH
BRI %ﬁ%&;ﬁmﬂ’éw%lﬁ EHEFBEU2H
RARIABAEZZE—\F+A=FTBEZRAE -

RZZE—NFAA=+TH  REEZRTERHEM
B3 BI#) A 123,000,000 % 7T & 168,000,000
Br(ZE—N\NF+=A=+—H: 28l A&
235,000,000/ 7T &2 172,000,000/ 70) ° A% E
ZHBITFEREFHEREEFLA8,000,000% 7T
(ZE—NF+ZHA=+—H:277,000,000 %
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As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the convertible bonds
outstanding principal amounts of HK$32 million and HK$449 million
are due on 15 September 2018 (“2015 CB”) and 16 September 2020
("2018 CB"), carrying interest of 5% and 3% per annum, respectively,
with right to convert the convertible bonds into ordinary shares of
the Company (the “Shares”). The conversion price of 2015 CB is
HK$0.158 per Share (subject to adjustments) and a maximum number
of 202,531,645 Shares may be allotted and issued upon exercise of
the conversion rights attached to 2015 CB in full. The conversion price
of 2018 CB is HK$0.255 per Share (subject to adjustments) and a
maximum number of 1,760,784,313 Shares may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of 2018 CB attached to the convertible bonds in full.
During the Period, no 2015 CB and 2018 CB were converted into the
Shares.

Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2019, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Capital and other commitments

The Group had capital and other commitments contracted but not
provided for of approximately HK$8 million (31 December 2018: HK$2
million) and nil (31 December 2018: HK$43 million) respectively as at
30 June 2019.

Charges on assets

As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, entire investment
properties of approximately HK$1,427 million (31 December 2018:
HK$1,425 million), entire paid up capital of Shundong Port and
certain trade receivables of approximately HK$2 million (31 December
2018: HK$12 million) were pledged for the Group’s bank and other
borrowings and finance lease liabilities.
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Exchange exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK$
and RMB exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market
trends have always been the concern of the Group. The policy of the
Group for its operating entities operates in their corresponding local
currencies to minimise currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its
exposure for the time being, did not enter into any derivative contracts
aimed at minimising exchange rate risks during the Period. However,
management will monitor foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure if necessary.

Employee information

As at 30 June 2019, the Group employed 32 full-time employees (30
June 2018: 150). The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on
the performance of individual employees and are reviewed annually
in line with industry practice. The Group also provides provident fund
schemes (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the
location of such employees.

Interim dividends

The Board did not recommend the payment of any interim dividend for
the Period (six months ended 30 June 2018: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS

Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage
and logistics facilities business

Since the completion of the acquisition of 51% effective interest
in Shundong Port by the Group in December 2015, the Group had
been proactively promoting the continual construction of the Port
and Storage Facilities. The original design of the Port and Storage
Facilities anticipated four berths for chemical tankers of 10,000
tonnage and two berths for chemical tankers of 5,000 tonnage. The
construction was completed in late September 2017 and the terminal
had commenced operation partially in late September 2017 and fully in
May 2018.
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On 24 October 2016, Shundong Port entered into a lease agreement
(the "Lease Agreement”) to lease the Port and Storage Facilities to an
independent third party (the “Lessee”). The rent payable by the Lessee
to Shundong Port for the Port and Storage Facilities under the Lease
Agreement before VAT is RMB125 million (approximately HK$145
million) per annum, which shall be payable in twelve equal instalments
on monthly basis in advance. The Lease Agreement became effective
in May 2018. Details of the Lease Agreement can be referred to the
circular of the Company dated 17 February 2017.

The Lease Agreement provides an opportunity for the Company to
generate a stable rental income from the Port and Storage Facilities,
which is expected to expedite the Group’s recovery of investment
costs and to deliver reasonable return on capital to the Group on this
project. In addition, the Lease Agreement is expected to improve the
Group’s asset and liabilities position in the long run, and to enhance
the fund-raising capabilities of Shundong Port in the short run. It is
currently expected that any cash derived from the rental income of the
Lease Agreement will be retained by Shundong Port for its settlement
of indebtedness, ongoing expansion and development plans.

Insurance brokerage business

Following the completion of the acquisition of an insurance brokerage
entity (as detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 7 May
2018), the Group creates an independent business segment in
August 2018. The Board believes that the Group can benefit from the
diversification of its operations into this industry and through better
deployment of available resources, can bring values to the Group and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Exploration and mining business

As disclosed in the 2018 FS, the Board found out that in 2010, the
exploration licence held by QHFSMI had been transferred to Yuen Xian
Company without the Company’s knowledge, consent or approval.

Since then, the Group had commenced legal proceedings (the “Mining
Litigations”) against Yuen Xian Company with the view to invalidating
the Change of Exploration Right Agreement dated 11 November 2009
(which caused the loss of the exploration license by QHFSMI) and
seeking to regain the control of QHFSMI and the exploration license.
In the past few years, the Group suspended its exploration and mining
business pending the outcome of the Mining Litigations.
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As announced by the Company on 11 June 2015, 12 June 2015 and 9
March 2016, the Higher People’s Court of Qinghai Province had made
a final judgment that the Change of Exploration Right Agreement
between QHFSMI and Yuen Xian Company was invalid and the Qinghai
Province People’s Procuratorate had expressed its “no-support” as
to the review of the abovementioned final judgement, respectively.
Following the conclusion of the Mining Litigations, the Company has
appointed the legal advisers in the PRC to enforce the judgement to
uphold the Group’s right. In the event that the Group could regain the
control of QHFSMI, the Group will be in the position to have access to
the relevant exploration and mining license and thereafter the Group
will perform due diligence review on the mining site. The Group is
conducting regular re-assessment on the progress made by its legal
advisers and the prospect of the Group’s mining segment from time to
time.
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DIRECTORS’® AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2019, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO™)), which had been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required to be entered in the register referred to therein pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are set out below:

EERFETHRAERKRSG - HE
ROREFzERRAR

RZZE-AFRA=TH EFRARFEET
BABRARBREEMBBER(EERES
REIEHOI(TEH RBE G ]) EXVER) 2B
-~ HEROREFTHREEREESFRBEK
PIEEXVEEE 7 M8 D #B @A AN R Al B FT - 3
BRBES RHEEDIE 352 FRERZREM
B2 B Mask  SARE LR RIS+ P
ZIRETAPBMARB MR 2 R gOXRE
FIEAs

Long positions
#e Approximately

Total number percentage of

of Sharesand  the issued share

Underlying underlying capital of the

Name of Directors Capacity Shares Shares Shares held Company

BEAR

R4 R BRIRE

£ af b9 RERG RERGAH BHEAL

Mr. Cao Sheng ("Mr. Cao") Interest of controlled corporation 1,370,000,000 784,313,725 2,154,313,725* 39.57%
ERAE(ERLE)) R RS

Mr. Yu Zhiyong ("Mr. Yu") Interest of controlled corporation 1,370,000,000 784,313,725 2,154,313,725* 39.57%
TEERE(TRE] R EEER

* According to the filings under Disclosure of Interest (the “DI Filings") * BEARRRAREHIBIESFRPER

under Part XV of the SFO retrieved by the Company from public
records, these 2,154,313,725 Shares and underlying Shares comprise
(a) 1,370,000,000 Shares held by Giant Crystal Limited (“Grant
Cystal”); and (b) 784,313,725 underlying Shares falling to be issued
upon conversion of the relevant 2018 CB subscribed by Giant Crystal.
Giant Crystal is 100% legally and beneficially owned by Cosmic Shine
International Limited (“Cosmic Shine”), which is in turn legally and
beneficially owned as to 50% by Mr. Cao and as to the other 50% by
Mr. Yu, both being executive Directors. Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal
are regarded as controlled corporations of Mr. Cao and Mr. Yu and
therefore, Mr. Cao and Mr. Yu are deemed to be interested in all the
2,154,313,725 Shares and underlying Shares interested in by Cosmic
Shine and Giant Crystal. The deemed interest under Part XV of the SFO

of Mr. Cao and Mr. Yu duplicate with each others completely.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2019, so far as any Directors are aware based on the
DI Filings, persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) who have interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required
to be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EEBARGEHES ZER

RERERER - ERESFHERBHRMN 185
ZF R EERAIEBARRA ZBDHESRT
B 2R TETEABERN  RARAHE
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FTERRRAEDXTRGD RAEBERKRSD
ZREERRE

RZZE-NAFERA=1TH BEFRESEHMA R
BREASFERR  UATAL(EFRARATE
TTBABRIN REDRBBEROTHEAREE
HREERGIEXVEE 2 RE3IDAARMARF)
BEBEIRRNBCHENARBRIBEESFR
HIERAIFE 36 IFRATHE 2B Mz EmE0%

P

=

Long positions

HE Approximate

Total number percentage of

of Shares and issued share

Underlying underlying capital of

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares Shares Shares held the Company

RSNG|

FrER% K& BRTRE

REREHE ) R HERG MR 28 BB

Giant Crystal Beneficial owner 1,370,000,000 784,313,725  2,154,313,725* 39.57%

5 & EREEA

Cosmic Shine Interest of controlled corporation 1,370,000,000 784,313,725  2,154,313,725* 39.57%

Cosmic Shine REhhEERR
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* Based on the DI Filings, these 2,154,313,725 Shares and underlying
Shares comprise (a) 1,370,000,000 Shares held by Giant Crystal; and
(b) 784,313,725 underlying Shares falling to be issued upon conversion
of the relevant 2018 CB subscribed by Giant Crystal. Giant Crystal is
100% legally and beneficially owned by Cosmic Shine. Giant Crystal
is regarded as controlled corporation of Cosmis Shine and therefore,
Cosmic Shine is deemed to be interested in all the 2,154,313,725
Shares and underlying Shares interested in by Giant Crystal. The deemed
interest under Part XV of the SFO of Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal

duplicate with each others completely.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the Shares.
As at 30 June 2019, no short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware up to 30 June
2019, no other person had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which was recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 24 June 2013, the Stock Exchange granted approval
of the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares to be issued
under the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 26
June 2013. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include the Directors, employee, consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a
company in which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such
company. The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 24 June 2013
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date. The Share Option Scheme will expire on 23
June 2023. There was no share option granted and exercised during
the period under review and no outstanding share option as at 30 June
2019.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company and the Board have applied the principles in the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules by adopting the code provisions of the CG Code.

During the Period, the Board has adopted and complied with the
code provisions of the CG Code in so far they are applicable with the
exception of the deviation from A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (the “CEQ") should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and CEO should be clearly
established and set out in writing. Since the position of the CEO is
vacated, the Company is still looking for a suitable candidate to fill the
vacancy of the CEO.

A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. For the period under review,
all independent non-executive Directors have not been appointed for
a specific term but they are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders, Mr. Tang Qingbin, Mr. Wang Jinghua and
Mr. Fung Nam Shan, the independent non-executive Directors, were
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
28 June 2019 due to their other prior engagements.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code and the Company has
made specific enquiries with all Directors and all of them confirmed
that they had complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the Period.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company, established in
compliance with the CG Code, currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors and one executive Director, is responsible
for reviewing and evaluating the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board from time to time.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company, established in
compliance with the CG Code, currently comprises three independent
nonexecutive Directors and one executive Director, is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and management of the succession.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision C.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors and is
chaired by Mr. Tang Qingbin. The Audit Committee is responsible for
review of the Group’s accounting principles, practices internal control
procedures and financial reporting matters including the review of the
interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending to the
Board for approval.
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES THROUGH ISSUE OF ZEBR{TRA AR ESEES
EQUITY/CONVERTIBLE BONDS £FH

In addition to the information disclosed in the 2018 annual report BARNRI ZE—N\FERE ([ ZZE—N\FF®]) T
of the Company (the “2018 AR"), the Board would like to provide WENERIN EFTeEHRARTAR_ZET—N
additional information in relation to the fund raising activities of the FERELTHIZHBINER -

Company in the year of 2018:

(1)  The net proceeds of approximately HK$85.1 million raised from (1) EREESR0.1438 LA % 609,940,000

the placement of 609,940,000 new Shares at the placing price of RIS D R TS s IB 2840 &2 85.1 B &8
HK$0.143 per Share, which was completed on 14 February 2018. T 2R2018F2 A14B5%TK ©
Intended use Amount Expected
of proceeds unused as at timeline
stated in 31 December  for utilisation of
the 2018 AR 2018  unused proceeds
R=Z-N\E

ZE-\EH +ZA=+-H AEAEEMD
g TinbEbNisR=S AEANER AHEREEL

HK$' million HK$' million

BEAT BEAT
Repayment of debt and liabilities EBEBEHKRERE 63.3 - -
General working capital of the Group AEEN—REEER 218 19.1 Before
31 December 2020
“E-FF
+-A=+—H8#

85.1 19.1
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(2) The total net proceeds of HK$441 million raised from the (2) SEREESERERKOTDNRISMLAEA

subscription of convertible bonds by Giant Crystal and not less RIBAMRE S PASRIBFEAR4.41018
than six placees procured by the placing agent, which was B RZE—NFNLAT+EHTK °

completed on 17 September 2018.

Expected

Intended use Amount Amount Amount timeline for

of proceeds unused as at unused as at unused as at utilisation of

stated in 31 December 17 April 10 September unused

the 2018 AR 2018 2019 2019* proceeds
ZB-\EHR R=2-N% RZB-N% RZB-n%§

fraksEy  +=A=t-8 mAt+tH hAtH KEALEN

BHAR REANEHE RERNER  ARADEEr EHERRER
HKS$' million HKS$' million HKS$" million HK$" million
REET BEET REATL BEETL

Repayment of debt and liabilities EBREBLEE (BHEH 282.0 269.2 13.8 - N/A
(including the amounts set RSB EASAE TR
aside for liabilities accrued or EHEE)
imminently accruing)

Expansion and business AEEHRENTEER 20.0 19.6 19.1 18.6 Before
development of the Group’s SBIBRRERER 31 December
newly acquired financial 2020
consulting business RZZZZF

TZR=1-H7

Maintenance of the Group's HEREERANERR 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 Before
existing businesses of oil AR RREIME 31 December
production and oil and liquefied EBERMRER 2020
chemical terminal, storage and W-E-FF
logistics TZA=T—H7

Possible financing of acquisition e aRE 114.0 - - - N/A
opportunities USEL:

410 313.8 57.9 43.6

* 10 September 2019 was the latest practicable date for ascertaining * TE-NENATHAHBRARSIEEZESY

these figures prior to the publication of this report. FUEBERAITHE -
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of the Directors pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of

the Listing Rules are disclosed below:

Name of Directors

Mr.

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung

Lan Yonggiang

Admiral

. Fung Nam Shan

. Wang Feng

. Lei Liangzhen

. Wang Meiyan

. Jin Yuping

Details of changes

Appointed as an authorised representative of
the Company with effect from 28 June 2019.

a) Ceased to act as (1) an independent
non-executive director and chairman of
audit committee, nomination committee
and remuneration committee of
Carnival Group International Holdings
Limited (listed on Main Board, stock
code: 996) with effect from May 2019;
and (2) a non-executive director and
member of nomination committee
and remuneration committee of China
Nonfenous Metals Company Limited
(listed on GEM, stock code: 8306) with
effect from June 2019; and

b) Increased annual remuneration to
HK$1,625,000 per annum with effect
from 1 July 2019.

Appointed as an independent non-executive
director and chairman of audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration
committee of JH Education Technology Inc.
(listed on Main Board, stock code: 1935) in
June 2019.

Appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 1 August 2019.

Appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 1 August 2019.

Retired as an executive Director and ceased
to be an authorised representative of the
Company with effect from 28 June 2019.

Retired as an executive Director with effect
from 28 June 2019.
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APPRECIATION &)

| take this opportunity to express our gratitude to the shareholders of ANABI A REAARRBEMETEE A S -
the Company for their continued support and our Directors and our FR ARAMRAEEES RS THLARTH

staff for their contribution to the Company. B OBHMMEARTMERNS N -
On behalf of the Board REE=Z®

Lan Yonggiang *E

Chairman EEkiA

Hong Kong, 28 August 2019 EH —ZET—hAENA=-+N\HRH
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